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Responses to supplier questions: Online
mapping portal for transparency initiatives

Purpose of document
This document provides answers to questions submitted by suppliers in response to a
request for proposals released on 11 October 2022.

Additional information for respondents
Suppliers may find it useful to examine the PCIO Baseline Datasets, prepared by the
Partnership for Countering Influence Operations at the Carnegie Endowment. The
datasets can be viewed here: https://ceip.knack.com/pcio-baseline-datasets#initiatives/

Our expectation is that the portal will be more visually appealing with much higher
functionality than the Baseline Datasets, however the Baseline Datasets are relevant
because:

1. They give an indication of the kind of data we will be collecting in the portal.
2. We have initial approval to use the data in the baseline datasets and incorporate it

into the portal.
3. We will probably adopt the Code Books used for each of the Baseline Datasets.

Next steps and timelines
● RFP responses are due by 8 November 2022.
● Candidate interviews will be conducted between 9-15 November.
● RFP responses are due by 8 November 2022.

With regard to the timelines for delivering the completed portal, there is some flexibility
around the deadline, though we would like to ensure that the public launch takes place
before 1 April 2023 at the latest.

Submission process
Submissions can be made by email to info@brainbox.institute with the subject line “RFP:
Response”.
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Questions and answers by subject

Timelines, project scope and logistics

1 Could you give us an indication of your
budget?

We have deliberately refrained from sharing this information. Cost of
development and ongoing maintenance is one factor we will consider among the
other factors identified in the RFP.

2 Timing and geography, including virtual/in
person meetings

Brainbox is based in New Zealand but can take calls outside business hours. GNI is
based in Washington DC. All meetings can be conducted virtually. Both Brainbox
and GNI travel internationally on a regular basis and there may be scope for in
person meetings during this travel if desirable and financially justified.

3 Is there any flexibility around the timelines
and deadlines outlined in the RFP?

There is flexibility around the timelines and deadlines, though we would prefer to
ensure that the public launch takes place before 1 April 2023.

4 Do you have a date when all of the
content will be ready?

The portal will be continually updated over its lifetime, and we anticipate
beginning to add content to the portal in earnest around a month before launch.
We can discuss project timelines during supplier interviews if this is a critical
factor for you.

5 Who will be involved in the sign off
process at the key stages of the project
(sitemap/wireframes, look and feel design
and the final site)?

Brainbox will be the primary organisation engaging with the supplier. We will
identify a single point of contact at Brainbox. As the project progresses, Brainbox
will need to seek approval at various stages from the Global Network Initiative.
Brainbox will be responsible for managing this relationship effectively. We will also
seek input from the Steering Group to the ACT.

6 Will we be using the existing ACT
branding or will the site have its own logo
+ look and feel?

The branding for the ACT is not well established beyond the logo being used.
Initially, we envisage using the ACT logo to brand the portal, however the portal
may last beyond the duration of the Action Coalition if it is successful, so there is
scope to create a separate identity for the portal. The portal will need the ability to
include the logos of sponsors of the project or other organisational contributors.
While the portal itself should be easy to use and visually appealing, the specific
branding and visual design of the portal is not a high priority.
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Site features

7 The Brainbox and the Global Network
Initiative/ACT websites are both in English
- will the portal also be in English?

Yes. Consistent with the global focus of the ACT, we may translate the portal in
future releases, but that will be a decision made after the portal has been
established.

8 Is there flexibility in terms of requested
features (i.e. collapse fields, world map,
etc.)?

There is flexibility in the requested features etc. - those listed in the RFP are our
current ‘best guess’ as to what is required, but we are open to adjustment.

9 Do you have an idea of how many pages
you will have on the site, or what will be
the structure of the whole site? A site map
layout would suffice, or a bullet point
listing of all the pages to be created.

We do not have a site map. Designing the ideal presentation of the portal will be
part of the solution we are seeking. We expect the pages to include:

● Homepage
● About
● Contact
● Search
● World map (potentially visible on homepage)
● Events (calendar potentially visible on homepage)
● Latest products
● Many entry pages for individual products/events/initiatives/entities

10 We understood from the brief that the
portal would be primarily for filling in data
and finding information with various links.
Search is therefore an essential part of the
site. Do you know of any similar
solution/website that does fundamentally
the same thing you need?

Websites with similarities to our envisaged final product include:
● Cybil cyber portal
● UNDIR cyber policy portal
● GHS index
● Policy Commons
● OECD AI Policy Observatory

Elasticsearch offers many of the search features we are looking for.

11 You talk about “in-search adjustment and
suggestions”. Could you tell us more about
your expectations here and how
important this feature is?

Search functionality is core to the site, and a strong and flexible search solution
(such as elasticsearch or similar) will be necessary. We would like users to be able
to iterate on searches without having to begin again from scratch, and would
ideally like the search system to offer suggestions in the case of spelling mistakes
etc. We welcome cost estimates for different levels of search functionality.
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12 You’ve mentioned needing an “events
calendar”. Is a calendar the requirement or
is a different presentation of events
acceptable - like a filterable list?

We would prefer a calendar for its intuitiveness and ease of use, though a
filterable list of events could serve as a useful supplement. We are currently using
a publicly available google calendar for this purpose and if this can interface with
the portal that would be desirable, but not essential.

13 How many events are you expecting to
present?

While this number is unlikely at launch, we would like the calendar to be able to
support upwards of 100 events and significant dates.

14 The website will also include a map. Do
you know a solution that you would like?
What should be displayed on the map and
how do you want to work with it? Will the
map make certain parts visible? For
example, countries if the filter is checked?

We would prefer official UN boundaries for the map, along the lines of
https://leafletjs.com/ We anticipate the map interface will include summary data
about the number of entries in each category for each country, for example the
number of entities, initiatives, products, and events in each country category. The
ability for users to visually filter countries/events/etc. would be a nice addition, but
is not essential.

15 Could you tell us more about the world
map - for instance; are there any particular
boundaries you would like to represent on
the map?

We would prefer official UN boundaries for the map, along the lines of
https://leafletjs.com/

16 What are your SEO requirements? Is it
important for you to have organic traffic
on your website? That is, to be traceable?

We do not have any existing SEO requirements. It would be desirable to be able to
track overall numbers of users and to ascertain how they are locating the portal.

17 Do you have any requirements for
analytics? Collecting information about
users, their passage through the
application, the number of visits to the
site?

Two considerations are very important. First, user privacy and compliance with
privacy laws is essential, given the subject matter of the portal related to tech
transparency. Second, it is important that users accessing the portal feel safe
doing so and in some jurisdictions, internet usage may be monitored by States or
otherwise create risks to internet users. As such, we do not want the capacity to
track individual users beyond aggregated data about numbers of users and
which pages are being accessed.
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Data structure and access

18 In the RFP it states that you are looking for
a database. Would it be OK for the
information to be stored within the
content management system or does it
need to be held in an external database?

If this CMS could enable users to index, sort, search and present potentially
thousands of entries quickly and efficiently we could be open to its use.

19 You mention a “relational database“. Is
there a particular reason for this sort of
database?

We want entries to be linked to each other - for example, if an entity is home to an
initiative, and that entity is hosting an event as part of that initiative, and an
output/product is produced from that event, then we want all of those links to be
clear. If this can be achieved using alternative structures, we would happily
consider alternatives.

20 Do you already know the data structure or
will we be working with you to establish it?

There is no set data structure yet. When classifying entries, we plan to adopt the
Code Books used in the PCIO baseline datasets initiative as far as possible -
https://ceip.knack.com/pcio-baseline-datasets#initiatives/ We also have initial
permission to use the data already contained in the baseline datasets. The most
relevant tabs in the PCIO Baseline Datasets are Initiatives, Policy Proposals,
Platform Policies, Transparency Reporting & Data Sharing.

21 Do you have any data you would like to
include in the portal? This would help us
get a clear idea of what data we will be
working with and how we can search, tag
and create other links within it.

When classifying entries, we plan to adopt the Code Books used in the PCIO
baseline datasets initiative as far as possible -
https://ceip.knack.com/pcio-baseline-datasets#initiatives/ We also have initial
permission to use the data already contained in the baseline datasets. The most
relevant tabs in the PCIO Baseline Datasets are Initiatives, Policy Proposals,
Platform Policies, Transparency Reporting & Data Sharing.

22 How many users will work with the app?
Will you need different permissions for
certain parts of the application? E.g. so
that some users cannot access the whole
site?

At launch, only one editor account will be required for use by Brainbox as project
lead. Over time, it may be desirable to have the ability to add other editors. We
anticipate that all users visiting the portal will be able to access all user-facing
parts of the portal.

23 Regarding data upload, should ordinary
users be allowed to upload their entities or

Over the long term, we would like users to have the ability to upload entries or
suggest changes to existing entries (subject to admin approval), but this feature is
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do you envision only admin personnel
being able to do so?

not necessary at launch. We would be interested to know the cost of adding a
feature that allows users to flag entries that they believe are incorrect or
otherwise require moderation, however this is not essential.

24 How many content editors are you
expecting to support?

At launch, only one editor account will be required for use by Brainbox as project
lead. Over time, it may be desirable to have the ability to add other editors.

25 Will you want a way to share the raw data
with users in any way?

This is a possible long-term feature, but is not necessary at launch.

Hosting and specific product solutions

26 Is this the first time you are developing this
type of application?

This is the first time we are developing this.

27 What are your requirements for
technology? Do you have any preferences
for CMS (Content Management System)?

We would prefer open source software is used so that we are not locked into
particular platforms, however we would weigh this against overall ease of use
and maintenance over the long term. We do not have a CMS preference.

28 Do you have any cloud or space in which
you wish this project to live, or if there are
any technical requirements or limitations
for the software programming or
deployment?

Any requirements that exist are reflected in the RFP or in our answers to these
questions. We cannot provide any further detail. With regard to hosting data for
the portal, we would be prepared to use commercial cloud solutions. We may
also able to seek support from ACT steering group members for long term
hosting if required.

29 Are you hosting the site or would you like
us to include costs for this?

With regard to hosting data for the portal, we would be prepared to use
commercial cloud solutions. We may also be able to seek support from ACT
steering group members for long term hosting if required. If you can indicate
costs for various hosting options, that would be beneficial.

30 Providing that we can deliver everything
that you need from the portal, are you
happy for it to be built in WordPress?

We would prefer open source software is used so that we are not locked into
particular platforms, however we would weigh this against overall ease of use
and maintenance over the long term, which may be superior if using a SAAS
product or WordPress.
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